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SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSI P
JACKSON DIVISION

F I LED

NOV 0 7 2012
J. T. NOBLIN. CLERK

BY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
CRIMINAL

v.

DEPUTY

N0'3IJCr /~~ 1/1Z<J"Left

18 U.S.C. § 1001
18 U.S.C. § 1505

TENNIE WHITE
The Grand Jury charges:

COUNT 1
Introduction
At all times relevant to the indictment:
1.

The defendant, TENNIE WHITE,'was the owner, operator and manager of two

business entities, Mississippi Environmental Analytical Laboratory, Incorporated (MEAL) and
Troubleshooters, Incorporated (Troubleshooters), which she administered from her office located
at 500 East Woodrow Wilson Avenue, Jackson, Mississippi.
2.

The defendant, TENNIE WHITE, incorporated MEAL under the laws of

Mississippi in July 1995. In December 1996, MEAL was administratively dissolved by the
Mississippi Secretary of State and has never been reinstated; however, TENNIE WHITE has
continued to conduct business under this name. MEAL's principle business was the
microbiological and chemical analysis of sample materials submitted by clients for a fee.
Among the laboratory services MEAL offered was the analysis of samples containing industrial
process waste water for the purpose of monitoring the client's compliance with federal and state
environmental laws, regulations and requirements.
3.

The defendant, TENNIE WHITE, incorporated Troubleshooters under the laws

of Mississippi in January 2004 and listed herself as the corporate President. Troubleshooter's
principle business was environmental consulting which included being hired to conduct
environmental audits, site assessments, municipal waste water treatment plant inspections, and
NPDES monitoring and reporting.
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Borg Warner Emissions Systems, Inc. (Borg Warner), a Delaware corporation, is

an automobile parts manufacturer located in Water Valley, Mississippi. Borg Warner has been
duly authorized and registered to conduct business in the state of Mississippi since 1996.
5.

In or about August 2008, Borg Warner hired TENNIE WHITE, doing business

as MEAL, to perform laboratory analysis of samples collected from the manufacturer's industrial
waste water discharge and to record the results of the lab analysis on Discharge Monitoring
Reports (DMRs) to be submitted to the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
(MDEQ).
Statutory and Regulatory Background
6.

The Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.c. § 1251 et seq., establishes the basic

structure for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States. It gives the
United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) the authority to implement pollution
control programs such as setting waste water standards for industry. The purpose of the CWA is
to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the Nation's waters.
To accomplish this objective, the CWA establishes a nationwide permit program, called the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), to control and limit direct
discharges of pollutants into the Nation's waters.
7.

One source of pollutants is publicly-owned treatment works (POTWs). Domestic,

commercial and industrial waste water is delivered to POTWs through sewer systems. After
treating this incoming waste water, a POTW discharges the treated waste water into a receiving
waterway. In order to ensure that POTWs comply with their NPDES permits, the CWA
authorizes the U.S. EPA to establish federal pretreatment regulations that regulate discharges
into sewer systems that flow to POTWs. These pretreatment regulations generally require,
among other things, that certain businesses (called "industrial users") adequately "pre-treat" their
2
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waste, that is, treat the waste water before it is discharged to the public sewer system in order to
reduce or eliminate particular chemicals or materials so that the resulting discharge meets
established parameters set by the permitting authority.
8.

The CWA allows U.S. EPA to grant approval authority to individual states to

issue NPDES permits, and to operate a pretreatment program within the state. 33 U.S.C. § 1342;
40 C.F.R. § 403.10. In 1974, the U.S. EPA granted approval to Mississippi to issue NPDES
permits within the state. In 1982, the U.S. EPA granted approval to Mississippi to operate a
pretreatment program. Mississippi then assumed responsibility for implementing the POTW
pretreatment program requirements set forth in the federal regulations in lieu of requiring local
POTWs to develop their own programs. 40 C.F.R. § 403.10(e).
9.

MDEQ issued the Water Valley POTW a NPDES permit (#MS0022331)

authorizing it to discharge into the Otoucalofa Creek. The Water Valley POTW's NPDES
permit was first issued in 1977 and renewed approximately every five years.
10.

MDEQ also issued Borg Warner an indirect discharge permit (#MSP090953)

authorizing the discharge of its industrial process waste water to the Water Valley POTW subject
to certain conditions. Borg Warner's indirect discharge permit was first issued by MDEQ in
1996 and was renewed approximately every five years.
11.

Borg Warner's indirect discharge permit set limits on the concentration of certain

pollutants contained within its industrial waste water, called effluent limitations. To meet these
effluent limitations, Borg Warner pretreated its waste water prior to discharge. Borg Warner's
pennit also required the company to collect samples of its waste water discharge each month, to
analyze those samples, and to record the results. Borg Warner was further required to report the
laboratory analysis results to MDEQ on the monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs).
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On or about February 18,2009, in Hinds County, in the Southern District of

Mississippi and elsewhere, the defendant, TENNIE K. WHITE, did knowingly and willfully
make and use a false writing and document knowing it contained materially false, fictitious and
fraudulent statements or entries in a matter within the jurisdiction of the U.S. EPA in that
defendant WHITE made and used three false DMRs which represented laboratory test results
for waste water samples collected by her client, Borg Warner, in October, November and
December 2008, which she knew were false in that, in truth and in fact, these waste water
samples were not tested,
All in violation of Sections 1001(a)(3), Title 18, United States Code.
COUNT 2
13.

Paragraphs 1through 11 are re-alleged.

14.

On or about March 18,2009, in Hinds County, in the Jackson Division of the

Southern District of Mississippi and elsewhere, the defendant, TENNIE K. WHITE, did
knowingly and willfully make and use a false writing and document knowing it contained
materially false, fictitious and fraudulent statements or entries in a matter within the jurisdiction
of the U.S. EPA, in that defendant WHITE made and used a laboratory report and caused the
making and use ofa DMR, which falsely represented laboratory test results of waste water
samples collected by Borg Warner in January 2009, which she knew to be false when, in truth
and in fact, these waste water samples had not been tested,
All in violation of Sections 1001(a)(3) and 2, Title 18, United States Code.
COUNT 3
15.

Paragraphs 1through 11 are re-alleged.

16.

On or about July 24,2009, in Hinds County, in the Jackson Division of the

Southern District of Mississippi and elsewhere, the defendant, TENNIE K. WillTE, did
4
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corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct and impede the due and proper administration of the
law under which a pending proceeding, namely a criminal investigation, was being had before
the U.S. EPA, by making false statements and representations to a Special Agent of the U.S.
EPA Criminal Investigation Division (CID) to include falsely representing that she forwarded the
waste water samples she received from Borg Warner to a contract laboratory, falsely
representing that she submitted the analytical data for the October, November and December
2008 waste water samples to Borg Warner, and falsely identifying another individual as the
person who created the fictitious CAS laboratory report dated 1/9/2009.
All in violation of Section 1505, Title 18, United States Code.
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United States Attorney

IGNACIA S. MORENO
Assistant Attorney General
.
ent & Natur!lkl~rmtlFGes Division
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Richard 1. Power
Trial Attol1}ey, nvirortmental Crimes Section

A TRUE BILL:
S/SIGNATURE REDACTED
Foreperson of the Grand Jury
Foreperson of the Grand Jury
This indictment was returned in open court by the foreperson or deputy foreperson of the
grand jury on this the ~gay of November 2012.
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PRETRIAL RELEASE REPORTING INSTRUCTIONS

(Rev 0719l)

DEFENDANT

DOCKET NO.

DISTRICT COURT

-r;

Southern District of Mississippi

CASE SUPERVISOR

REPORT AS FOLL .

In Person:

The I" Monday of each month between 8 a.m. and 9 a.m. to the:
l, 8'Q. (> a....A. 1(· l ~ {l..

~<...~

U. S.Probation Office
U. S. Courthouse
501 East Court Street, Suite 1.550
Jackson, MS 39201

~~W~

By Telephone: As directed, upon any contact with law enforcement, if you change residences,or if you need to travel outside
the State of Mississippi.

Additional Instructions:

As outlined in the "Order Setting Conditions of Release"

lfnot directed to report in person, you are directed to submit a Pretrial Services Supervision Report the l" five days of each month.

Home visits wil\ be conducted throughout your period of supervision.
Notify your Pretrial Services Officer immediately of any change in address, telephone, or employment.
10 days notice must be given for approval of travel outside the restricted area.
You shall not commit a federal, state, or local crime during the period of release. You shall inform the Pretrial Services Officer
immediately if you are charged with an offense.

DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT
I understand the above stated instructions and understand that failure to comply will be reported to the Court and may result in the
revocation of my bond and my detention pending the outcome of my case.
SIGNATURE OF DEFENDANT

DATE

SIGNATURE OF UNITED STATES PRETRIAL SERVICES OFFICER

DATE

.......•."~..

__

""'~.,,

_------------_

......
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corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct and impede the due and proper administration of the
law under which a pending proceeding, namely a criminal investigation, was being had before
the U.S. EPA, by making false statements and representations to a Special Agent of the U.S.
EPA Criminal Investigation Division (CID) to include falsely representing that she forwarded the
waste water samples she received from Borg Warner to a contract laboratory, falsely
representing that she submitted the analytical data for the October, November and December
2008 waste water samples to Borg Warner, and falsely identifying another individual as the
person who created the fictitious CAS laboratory report dated 1/9/2009.
All in violation of Section 1505, Title 18, United States Code.

~~
United States Attorney

IGNACIA S. MORENO
Assistant Attorney General
.
ent & Natur!lkl~rmtlFGes Division

,
/7
~

~
_/'
,~./'

Richard 1. Power
Trial Attol1}ey, nvirortmental Crimes Section

A TRUE BILL:
S/SIGNATURE REDACTED
Foreperson of the Grand Jury
Foreperson of the Grand Jury
This indictment was returned in open court by the foreperson or deputy foreperson of the
grand jury on this the ~gay of November 2012.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

Southern District of Mississippi

United States of America

)
)
)
)
)

v.
TENNIE wmTE
Defendant

Case No.

3: 12cr126-HTW-LRA

ORDER SETTING CONDITIONS OF RELEASE
IT IS ORDERED that the defendant's release is subject to these conditions:
(1)

The defendant must not violate federal, state, or local law while on release.

(2)

The defendant must cooperate in the collection ofa DNA sample if it is authorized by 42 U.S.C. § 14135a.

(3)

The defendant must advise the court or the pretrial services office or supervising officer in writing before making
any change of residence or telephone number.

(4)

The defendant must appear in court as required and, if convicted, must surrender as directed to serve a sentence
that the court may impose.
The defendant must appear at:
Place

on
Date and Time

If blank, defendant will be notified of next appearance.
(5)

The defendant must sign an Appearance Bond, if ordered.

COP
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ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF RELEASE
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the defendant's release is subject to the conditions marked below:
)

(6)

The defendant is placed in the custody of:
Person or organization
Address (only if above is an

organization)
City and state
Tel. No. -----c----c---:-::----:-----:-----:-:----c-
who agrees to (a) supervise the defendant, (b) use every effort to assure the defendant's appearance at all court proceedings, and (c) notify the court immediately
if the defendant violates a condition of release or is no longer in the custodian's custody.
Signed:

_

Custodian
( X)

Date

(7) The defendant must:
_
( x ) (a) submit to supervision by and report for supervision to the --,U'-"",=S--"--'P--'ro'-'b'--'a""tl--'·o_n_O"-ffi"-----lc--'e
telephone number
601-608-4900
, no later than ...ca"'s--'d"'ir'--'e...cc""te-=d'---_
x ) (b) continue or actively seek employment.
x ) (c) continue or start an education program.
x) ~ rurrwd~anypu~~w:
--'U'-.' ..=S--'."-P'-'ro--'b-=a""ti--'oo'---_
x ) (e) not obtain a passport or other international travel document.
x ) (f) abide by the following restrictions on personal association, residence, or travel:
remain in the Southern District of Mississippi at all
times during the pendency of these proceedings unless special permission is obtained from the Court
x ) (g) avoid all contact, directly or indirectly, with any person who is or may be a victim or witness in the investigation or prosecution,
including:
) (h) get medical or psychiatric treatment:
) (i) return to custody each
or the following purposes:

x
x
x
x

at

_ _ _ _ 0' clock

after being released at _ _ _ _ _ o'clock for employment, schooling,

) U) maintain residence at a halfway house or community corrections center, as the pretrial services office or supervising officer considers
necessary.
) (k) not possess a firearm, destructive device, or other weapon.
) (1) not use alcohol ( x ) at all (
) excessively.
) (m) not use or unlawfully possess a narcotic drug or other controlled substances defined in 2 I U.S.C. § 802, unless prescribed by a licensed
medical practitioner.
) (n) submit to testing for a prohibited substance ifrequired by the pretrial services office or supervising officer. Testing may be used with random
frequency and may include urine testing, the wearing of a sweat patch, a remote alcohol testing system, andlor any form of prohibited
substance screening or testing. The defendant must not obstruct, attempt to obstruct, or tamper with the efficiency and accuracy ofprohibited
substance screening or testing.

) (0) participate in a program of inpatient or outpatient substance abuse therapy and counseling if directed by the pretrial services office or
supervising officer.
) (p) participate in one ofthe following location restriction programs and comply with its requirements as directed.
) from
to
, or (
) as
(
) (i) Curfew. You are restricted to your residence every day (
directed by the pretrial services office or supervising officer; or
) (ii) Home Detention. You are restricted to your residence at all times except for employment; education; religious services; medical,
substance abuse, or mental health treatment; attorney visits; court appearances; court-ordered obligations; or other activities
approved in advance by the pretrial services office or supervising officer; or
) (iii) Home Incarceration. You are restricted to 24-hour-a-day lock-down at your residence except for medical necessities and
court appearances or other activities specifically approved by the court.
) (q) submit to location monitoring as directed by the pretrial services office or supervising officer and comply with all of the program
requirements and instructions provided.
(
) You must pay all or part of the cost of the program based on your ability to pay as determined by the pretrial services office or
supervising officer.
x ) (r) report as soon as possible, to the pretrial services office or supervising officer, every contact with law enforcement personnel, including
arrests, questioning, or traffic stops.
x ) (s) confer with probation officer prior to filin~ rescri tion to make sure medication is not on a restricted list
permit probation officer to visit at any time (at home or elsewhere) and permit confiscation of any contraband observed in plain view
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ADVICE OF PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS
TO THE DEFENDANT:
YOU ARE ADVISED OF THE FOLLOWING PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS:
Violating any of the foregoing conditions of release may result in the immediate issuance of a warrant for your arrest, a
revocation of your release, an order of detention, a forfeiture of any bond, and a prosecution for contempt of court and could result in
imprisonment, a fine, or both.
While on release, if you commit a federal felony offense the punishment is an additional prison term of not more than ten years
and for a federal misdemeanor offense the punishment is an additional prison term of not more than one year. This sentence will be
consecutive (i. e., in addition to) to any other sentence you receive.
It is a crime punishable by up to ten years in prison, and a $250,000 fine, or both, to: obstruct a criminal investigation;
tamper with a witness, victim, or informant; retaliate or attempt to retaliate against a witness, victim, or informant; or intimidate or attempt
to intimidate a witness, victim, juror, informant, or officer of the court. The penalties for tampering, retaliation, or intimidation are
significantly more serious if they involve a killing or attempted killing.
If, after release, you knowingly fail to appear as the conditions of release require, or to surrender to serve a sentence,
you may be prosecuted for failing to appear or surrender and additional punishment may be imposed. If you are convicted of:
(1) an offense punishable by death, life imprisonment, or imprisonment for a term of fifteen years or more - you will be fined
not more than $250,000 or imprisoned for not more than 1 years, or both;
(2) an offense punishable by imprisonment for a term of five years or more, but less than fifteen years - you will be fmed not
more than $250,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or both;
(3) any other felony - you will be fmed not more than $250,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both;
(4) a misdemeanor - you will be fmed not more than $100,000 or imprisoned not more than one year, or both.
A term of imprisonment imposed for failure to appear or surrender will be consecutive to any other sentence you receive. In
addition, a failure to appear or surrender may result in the forfeiture of any bond posted.

°

Acknowledgment of the Defendant
I acknowledge that I am the defendant in this case and that I am aware of the conditions of release. I promise to obey all conditions
of release, to appear as directed, and surrender to serve any sentence imposed. I am aware of the penalties and sanctions set forth above.

Directions to the United States Marshal

( X ) The defendant is ORDERED released after processing.
(

) The United States marshal is ORDERED to keep the defendant in custody until notified by the clerk or judge that the defendant
has posted bond and/or complied with all other conditions for release. Ifstill in custody, the defendant must be produced before
the appropriate judge at the time and place specified.

Date: _ _---=N:. . :.o=--v:. . :. --=1:. . :.4z..:,2=-0:....:1:..::2-'---_ _
Judicial Officer's Signature

Linda R. Anderson United States Ma
Printed name and title
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SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSI P
JACKSON DIVISION

F I LED

NOV 0 7 2012
J. T. NOBLIN, CLERK

BY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

CRIMINAL NO'3.IJ(r

v.

DEPUTY

I~~ J1JZo/Led

18 U.S.C. § 1001
18 U.S.C. § 1505

TENNIE WHITE
The Grand Jury charges:

COUNT 1
Introduction
At all times relevant to the indictment:
1.

The defendant, TENNIE WHITE,was the owner, operator and manager of two

business entities, Mississippi Environmental Analytical Laboratory, Incorporated (MEAL) and
Troubleshooters, Incorporated (Troubleshooters), which she administered from her office located
at 500 East Woodrow Wilson Avenue, Jackson, Mississippi.
2.

The defendant, TENNIE WHITE, incorporated MEAL under the laws of

Mississippi in July 1995. In December 1996, MEAL was administratively dissolved by the
Mississippi Secretary of State and has never been reinstated; however, TENNIE WHITE has
continued to conduct business under this name. MEAL's principle business was the
microbiological and chemical analysis of sample materials submitted by clients for a fee.
Among the laboratory services MEAL offered was the analysis of samples containing industrial
process waste water for the purpose of monitoring the client's compliance with federal and state
environmental laws, regulations and requirements.
3.

The defendant, TENNIE WHITE, incorporated Troubleshooters under the laws

of Mississippi in January 2004 and listed herself as the corporate President. Troubleshooter's
principle business was environmental consulting which included being hired to conduct
environmental audits, site assessments, municipal waste water treatment plant inspections, and
NPDES monitoring and reporting.
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Borg Warner Emissions Systems, Inc. (Borg Warner), a Delaware corporation, is

an automobile parts manufacturer located in Water Valley, Mississippi. Borg Warner has been
duly authorized and registered to conduct business in the state of Mississippi since 1996.
5.

In or about August 2008, Borg Warner hired TENNIE WHITE, doing business

as MEAL, to perform laboratory analysis of samples collected from the manufacturer's industrial
waste water discharge and to record the results of the lab analysis on Discharge Monitoring
Reports (DMRs) to be submitted to the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality
(MDEQ).
Statutory and Regulatory Background
6.

The Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq., establishes the basic

structure for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States. It gives the
United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) the authority to implement pollution
control programs such as setting waste water standards for industry. The purpose of the CWA is
to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the Nation's waters.
To accomplish this objective, the CWA establishes a nationwide permit program, called the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), to control and limit direct
discharges of pollutants into the Nation's waters.
7.

One source of pollutants is publicly-owned treatment works (POTWs). Domestic,

commercial and industrial waste water is delivered to POTWs through sewer systems. After
treating this incoming waste water, a POTW discharges the treated waste water into a receiving
waterway. In order to ensure that POTWs comply with their NPDES permits, the CWA
authorizes the U.S. EPA to establish federal pretreatment regulations that regulate discharges
into sewer systems that flow to POTWs. These pretreatment regulations generally require,
among other things, that certain businesses (called "industrial users") adequately "pre-treat" their
2

Case 3:12-cr-00126-HTW-LRA Document 1

Filed 11/07/12 Page 3 of 5

waste, that is, treat the waste water before it is discharged to the public sewer system in order to
reduce or eliminate particular chemicals or materials so that the resulting discharge meets
established parameters set by the permitting authority.
8.

The CWA allows U.S. EPA to grant approval authority to individual states to

issue NPDES permits, and to operate a pretreatment program within the state. 33 U.S.C. § 1342;
40 C.F.R. § 403.10. In 1974, the U.S. EPA granted approval to Mississippi to issue NPDES
permits within the state. In 1982, the U.S. EPA granted approval to Mississippi to operate a
pretreatment program. Mississippi then assumed responsibility for implementing the POTW
pretreatment program requirements set forth in the federal regulations in lieu of requiring local
POTWs to develop their own programs. 40 C.F.R. § 403.10(e).
9.

MDEQ issued the Water Valley POTW a NPDES permit (#MS002233I)

authorizing it to discharge into the Otoucalofa Creek. The Water Valley POTW's NPDES
permit was first issued in 1977 and renewed approximately every five years.
10.

MDEQ also issued Borg Warner an indirect discharge permit (#MSP090953)

authorizing the discharge of its industrial process waste water to the Water Valley POTW subject
to certain conditions. Borg Warner's indirect discharge permit was first issued by MDEQ in
1996 and was renewed approximately every five years.
11.

Borg Warner's indirect discharge permit set limits on the concentration of certain

pollutants contained within its industrial waste water, called effluent limitations. To meet these
effluent limitations, Borg Warner pretreated its waste water prior to discharge. Borg Warner's
permit also required the company to collect samples of its waste water discharge each month, to
analyze those samples, and to record the results. Borg Warner was further required to report the
laboratory analysis results to MDEQ on the monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs).
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On or about February 18,2009, in Hinds County, in the Southern District of

Mississippi and elsewhere, the defendant, TENNIE K. WHITE, did knowingly and willfully
make and use a false writing and document knowing it contained materially false, fictitious and
fraudulent statements or entries in a matter within the jurisdiction of the U.S. EPA in that
defendant WHITE made and used three false DMRs which represented laboratory test results
for waste water samples collected by her client, Borg Warner, in October, November and
December 2008, which she knew were false in that, in truth and in fact, these waste water
samples were not tested,
All in violation of Sections 1001(a)(3), Title 18, United States Code.
COUNT 2
13.

Paragraphs 1through 11 are re-alleged.

14.

On or about March 18,2009, in Hinds County, in the Jackson Division of the

Southern District of Mississippi and elsewhere, the defendant, TENNIE K. WHITE, did
knowingly and willfully make and use a false writing and document knowing it contained
materially false, fictitious and fraudulent statements or entries in a matter within the jurisdiction
of the U.S. EPA, in that defendant WHITE made and used a laboratory report and caused the
making and use of a DMR, which falsely represented laboratory test results of waste water
samples collected by Borg Warner in January 2009, which she knew to be false when, in truth
and in fact, these waste water samples had not been tested,
All in violation of Sections 1001 (a)(3) and 2, Title 18, United States Code.
COUNT 3
15.

Paragraphs 1through 11 are re-alleged.

16.

On or about July 24,2009, in Hinds County, in the Jackson Division of the

Southern District of Mississippi and elsewhere, the defendant, TENNIE K. WHITE, did
4
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corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct and impede the due and proper administration of the
law under which a pending proceeding, namely a criminal investigation, was being had before
the U.S. EPA, by making false statements and representations to a Special Agent of the U.S.
EPA Criminal Investigation Division (CID) to include falsely representing that she forwarded the
waste water samples she received from Borg Warner to a contract laboratory, falsely
representing that she submitted the analytical data for the October, November and December
2008 waste water samples to Borg Warner, and falsely identifying another individual as the
person who created the fictitious CAS laboratory report dated 1/9/2009.
All in violation of Section 1505, Title 18, United States Code.
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United States Attorney
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Richard J. Power
Trial Attorney, nvironmentaI Crimes Section

A TRUE BILL:
S/SIGNATURE REDACTED
Foreperson of the Grand Jury
Foreperson of the Grand Jury
This indictment was returned in open court by the foreperson or deputy foreperson of the

+h

grand jury on this the ~day of November 2012.
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